Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc. Form 424B3
August 04, 2017
Table of Contents

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) Registration No. 333-215229

# **CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE**

|  | Proposed       |                     |
|--|----------------|---------------------|
|  | maximum        |                     |
| Title of each class of                   |                | <b>Amount of</b>    |
|  | aggregate      |                     |
| securities to be registered              | offering price | registration fee(1) |
| Common Stock, \$0.01 par value per share | \$150,000,000  | \$17,385            |

(1) Calculated in accordance with Rule 457(o), based on the proposed maximum aggregate offering price, and Rule 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, \$3,958 of the registration fee, which was paid with respect to unsold shares registered on a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-198157) filed by Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc. on August 14, 2014, is being carried forward and is offset against the registration fee due for this offering. The remaining balance of the registration fee, \$13,427, has been paid in connection with this offering.

# PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To prospectus dated August 4, 2017)

### \$150,000,000

### HANNON ARMSTRONG SUSTAINABLE

# INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL, INC.

### **Common Stock**

Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc. makes debt and equity investments in sustainable infrastructure, including energy efficiency and renewable energy.

We have entered into sales agreements, or the Sales Agreements, with each of FBR Capital Markets & Co. and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated, as our sales agents, relating to the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. In accordance with the terms of the Sales Agreements, we may, through the sales agents, offer and sell from time to time shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$150,000,000.

Sales of our common stock, if any, under this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus may be made in sales deemed to be at-the-market offerings as defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, including by sales made directly on or through the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, or another market for our common stock, sales made to or through a market maker other than on an exchange or otherwise, in negotiated transactions, which may include block trades, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale or at negotiated prices, or as otherwise agreed with the applicable sales agent. We will submit orders to only one sales agent relating to the sale of shares of our common stock on any given day. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreements, the sales agents will use their commercially reasonable efforts to sell on our behalf all of the designated shares. We may instruct the sales agents not to sell any shares if the sales cannot be effected at or above the price designated by us in any such instruction.

We also may sell shares of our common stock to one or more of the sales agents, as principal for their own accounts, at a price per share agreed upon at the time of sale. If we sell shares to one or more sales agents, as principal, we will enter into a separate terms agreement with such sales agent or agents, and we will describe the agreement in a separate prospectus supplement or pricing supplement.

We will pay the sales agents a commission of up to 2% of the gross sales price per share sold through them as our agents under the Sales Agreements. In connection with the sale of our common shares on our behalf, the sales agents may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act, and the compensation paid to the sales agents may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol HASI. On August 2, 2017, the last reported sales price for our common stock on the NYSE was \$23.14 per share.

We elected and qualified to be taxed as a real estate investment trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or REIT, commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 2013. To assist us in qualifying as a REIT, among other purposes, stockholders are generally restricted from owning more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of our common stock, the outstanding shares of any class or series of our preferred stock, or the outstanding shares of our capital stock. In addition, our charter contains various restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our shares. See Description of Securities Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer in the accompanying prospectus.

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See <u>Risk Factors</u> beginning on S-4 of this prospectus supplement and page 3 of the accompanying prospectus. You should also read carefully the risk factors described in our Securities and Exchange Commission filings, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, before investing in our common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these shares or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus are truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

FBR BAIRD

The date of this prospectus supplement is August 4, 2017.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

|   | Page |
|---|------|
| ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT  | S-ii |
| PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY   | S-1  |
| THE OFFERING  | S-2  |
| RISK FACTORS  | S-4  |
| FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  | S-5  |
| USE OF PROCEEDS   | S-7  |
| PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION  | S-8  |
| LEGAL MATTERS   | S-10 |
| EXPERTS EXPERTS   | S-11 |
| WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION AND INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE      | S-12 |
| PROSPECTUS  |      |
|   |      |
|   | Daga |
| ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS   | Page |
| SUMMARY INFORMATION   | 1    |
| RISK FACTORS  | 3    |
| FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  | 4    |
| RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES                                      | 6    |
| USE OF PROCEEDS   | 7    |
| SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS   | 8    |
| PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION  | 9    |
| DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES   | 11   |
| DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK   | 16   |
| DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK  | 18   |
| DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES  | 20   |
| DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES  | 22   |
| DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS   | 25   |
| DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS   | 27   |
| CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MARYLAND GENERAL CORPORATION LAW AND OUR      |      |
| CHARTER AND BYLAWS  | 28   |
| HANNON ARMSTRONG SUSTAINABLE INFRASTRUCTURE, L.P. PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT | 34   |
| U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS                                  | 37   |
| BOOK-ENTRY SECURITIES   | 66   |
| LEGAL MATTERS   | 68   |
| <u>EXPERTS</u>  | 69   |
| WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION                                     | 70   |

Table of Contents 4

S-i

# ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first part is the prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering and also updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference into the prospectus. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which gives more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering. To the extent there is a conflict between the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the information contained in the accompanying prospectus, the information in this prospectus supplement shall control. In addition, any statement in a filing we make with the SEC that adds to, updates or changes information contained in an earlier filing we made with the SEC shall be deemed to modify and supersede such information in the earlier filing.

You should read this document together with additional information described under the heading Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation by Reference in this prospectus supplement. You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompany prospectus. Neither we nor the sales agents have authorized anyone to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. You should assume that the information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, as well as the information we have previously filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference in this document, is accurate only as of its date or the dates which are specified in those documents, as applicable, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or any sale of shares of our common stock.

S-ii

# PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

This summary highlights some of the information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. It does not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in shares of our common stock. Before making an investment decision, you should read this entire prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein, including the financial statements and related notes as well as the Risk Factors section in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as supplemented by the Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2016, or collectively our 2016 10-K, as updated by our subsequent filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. References in this prospectus supplement to we, our, us and our company refer to Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure, L.P., and any of our other subsidiaries. Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership of which we are the sole general partner and to which we refer in this prospectus supplement as our operating partnership.

# **Company Overview**

We are an internally managed real estate investment trust, or REIT, that makes debt and equity investments in sustainable infrastructure, including energy efficiency and renewable energy projects, that provide cleaner energy sources, positively impact the environment or make more efficient use of natural resources.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 2013.

S-1

# THE OFFERING

Common stock offered by us

Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, having aggregate sales proceeds of up to \$150,000,000.

Method of offering

At the market offering that may be made from time to time through FBR Capital Markets & Co. and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated, as our sales agents, using commercially reasonable efforts. See Plan of Distribution.

Use of proceeds

We intend to contribute the net proceeds from any sales of shares of common stock resulting from this prospectus supplement to our operating partnership, which in turn will use the majority of such proceeds to repay outstanding borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility, or our Existing Credit Facility, or for general corporate purposes. As of June 30, 2017, we had approximately \$290 million outstanding under our Existing Credit Facility. Following any such repayment, our operating partnership will use any remaining net proceeds, together with the available borrowing capacity under our Existing Credit Facility, to acquire our target assets subject to our investment strategy and, to the extent consistent with maintaining our REIT qualification and our exception from registration under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act, for general corporate purposes. Prior to the full investment of such remaining net proceeds, we intend to invest such remaining net proceeds in interest-bearing accounts and short-term, interest-bearing securities which are consistent with our intention to qualify for taxation as a REIT. See Use of Proceeds. For further information about our objectives and strategies, please see Business Investment Strategy, included in our 2016 10-K, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

Dividend policy

We have made and intend to continue to make regular quarterly distributions to holders of our common stock. U.S. federal income tax law generally requires that a REIT distribute annually at least 90% of its REIT taxable income, without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gains, and that it pay tax at regular corporate rates to the extent that it annually distributes less than 100% of its REIT taxable income. Our current policy is to pay quarterly distributions, which on an annual basis will equal or exceed all or substantially all of our REIT taxable income. Any distributions we make will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon, among other things, our actual results of operations. These results and our ability to

pay distributions will be affected by various factors, including the net interest and other income from our portfolio, our operating expenses and any other expenditures.

New York Stock Exchange symbol

**HASI** 

Ownership and transfer restrictions

To assist us in complying with the limitations on the concentration of ownership of a REIT imposed by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

S-2

as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code, among other purposes, our charter generally prohibits, among other prohibitions, any stockholder from beneficially or constructively owning more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of any of the outstanding shares of our common stock, the outstanding shares of any class or series of our preferred stock or the outstanding shares of our capital stock. See Description of Securities Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer in the accompanying prospectus.

Risk factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully read the information contained under the caption Risk Factors in this prospectus supplement and page 3 of the accompanying prospectus, and the risks set forth under the caption Item 1A. Risk Factors included in our 2016 10-K and our other filings under the Exchange Act for risks that you should consider before deciding to invest in shares of our common stock.

Regulatory

We have elected to qualify, and operate our business so as to qualify, to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 2013.

We also intend to continue to operate our business in a manner that will permit us to maintain our exception from registration as an investment company under the 1940 Act.

# **Our Corporate Information**

Our principal executive offices are located at 1906 Towne Centre Blvd, Suite 370, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. Our telephone number is (410) 571-9860. Our website is www.hannonarmstrong.com. The information on our website is not intended to form a part of or be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

### **RISK FACTORS**

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the risk factors described below and the risks described beginning on page 3 of the accompanying prospectus and in the section Risk Factors contained in our 2016 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference, together with all of the other information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Any of these risks described could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, tax status or ability to make distributions to our stockholders. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially and adversely affect our business operations. If this were to happen, the price of our common stock could decline significantly and you could lose a part or all of your investment.

### The market price for our common stock may be volatile.

The price at which shares of our common stock may be sold in the public market after they are purchased pursuant to this prospectus supplement may be lower than the price at which they are sold through or by a sales agent. The market price of our common stock may be volatile and be subject to wide fluctuations. Fluctuations in our stock price may not reflect our historical financial performance and condition and prospects. Our stock price may fluctuate as a result of factors that are beyond our control or unrelated to our historical financial performance and condition and prospects. We cannot assure you that the market price of our common stock will not be volatile or fluctuate or decline significantly in the future. In addition, the stock market in general can experience considerable price and volume fluctuations that may be unrelated to our historical performance and condition and prospects.

Sales of our common stock, preferred stock, warrants or debt securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock may depress the price of our common stock and be dilutive to holders of our common stock.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, that future issuances or sales of our common stock, preferred stock, warrants or debt securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock, including sales of our common stock pursuant to one or more of the Sales Agreements, or the availability of our securities for future issuance or sale, will have on the market price of shares of our common stock. Issuances or sales of substantial amounts of our common stock, preferred stock, warrants or debt securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock, including sales of our common stock pursuant to one or more of the Sales Agreements, or the perception that such issuances or sales might occur, could negatively impact the market price of our common stock and the terms upon which we may obtain additional equity financing in the future. Preferred stock we issue will generally be senior to our common stock with respect to dividends and liquidation rights. The issuance of any additional shares of our common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable for common stock or that represent the right to receive common stock, or the exercise of such securities, could be substantially dilutive to holders of our common stock, including purchasers of common stock in this offering. The vesting of any restricted stock granted to directors, executive officers and other employees, and other issuances of our common stock could have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock, and the existence of our common stock reserved for issuance under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, may adversely affect the terms upon which we may be able to obtain additional capital through the sale of equity securities.

# FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this prospectus supplement within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act that are subject to risks and uncertainties. For these statements, we claim the protections of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in such Sections. These forward-looking statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations, plans and objectives. When we use the words believe, expect, anticipate, estimate, plan, continue, intend, should, may or similar expressions, we intend to identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are subject to significant risks and uncertainties. Investors are cautioned against placing undue reliance on such statements. Actual results may differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements are contained in our 2016 10-K that was filed with the SEC, and include risks discussed in other periodic reports that we file with the SEC. Statements regarding the following subjects, among others, may be forward-looking:

our expected returns and performance of our investments;

the state of government legislation, regulation and policies that support or enhance the economic feasibility of sustainable infrastructure projects, including energy efficiency and renewable energy projects and the general market demands for such projects;

market trends in our industry, energy markets, commodity prices, interest rates, the debt and lending markets or the general economy;

our business and investment strategy;

availability of opportunities to invest in sustainable infrastructure projects, including energy efficiency and renewable energy projects and our ability to complete potential new opportunities in our pipeline;

our relationships with originators, investors, market intermediaries and professional advisers;

competition from other providers of capital;

our or any other companies projected operating results;

actions and initiatives of the federal, state and local governments and changes to federal, state and local government policies, regulations, tax laws and rates and the execution and impact of these actions,

Edgar Filing: Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc. - Form 424B3 initiatives and policies;

the state of the U.S. economy generally or in specific geographic regions, states or municipalities; economic trends and economic recoveries;

our ability to obtain and maintain financing arrangements on favorable terms, including securitizations;

general volatility of the securities markets in which we participate;

changes in the value of our assets, our portfolio of assets and our investment and underwriting process;

S-5

rates of default or decreased recovery rates on our assets;

interest rate and maturity mismatches between our assets and any borrowings used to fund such assets;

changes in interest rates and the market value of our assets and target assets;

changes in commodity prices;

effects of hedging instruments on our assets or liabilities;

the degree to which our hedging strategies may or may not protect us from interest rate volatility;

impact of and changes in accounting guidance and similar matters;

our ability to maintain our qualification as a REIT;

our ability to maintain our exception from registration under the 1940 Act;

availability of qualified personnel;

estimates relating to our ability to make distributions to our stockholders in the future; and

our understanding of our competition.

Forward-looking statements are based on beliefs, assumptions and expectations as of the date of this prospectus supplement or the date of the documents incorporated by reference herein. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made. New risks and uncertainties arise over time, and it is not possible for us to predict those events or how they may affect us. Except as required by law, we are not obligated to, and do not intend to, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The risks included here are not exhaustive. Other sections of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein may include additional factors that could adversely affect our business and financial performance. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such risk factors, nor can it assess the impact of all such risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties, investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual results.

### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We intend to contribute the net proceeds from any sales of shares of common stock resulting from this prospectus supplement to our operating partnership, which in turn will use the majority of such proceeds to repay outstanding borrowings under our Existing Credit Facility or for general corporate purposes. As of June 30, 2017, we had approximately \$290 million outstanding under our Existing Credit Facility. Following any such repayment, our operating partnership will use any remaining net proceeds, together with the available borrowing capacity under our Existing Credit Facility, to acquire our target assets subject to our investment strategy and, to the extent consistent with maintaining our REIT qualification and our exception from registration under the 1940 Act, for general corporate purposes. Prior to the full investment of such remaining net proceeds, we intend to invest such remaining net proceeds in interest-bearing accounts and short-term, interest-bearing securities which are consistent with our intention to qualify for taxation as a REIT.

Our Existing Credit Facility consists of two components, the G&I Facility and the PF Facility. The G&I Facility can be used to leverage certain qualifying government and institutional financings entered into by us and the PF Facility can be used to leverage certain qualifying project financings entered into by us. Loans under the G&I Facility bear interest at a rate equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.5% or, under certain circumstances, 1.5% plus the Base Rate. Loans under the PF Facility bear interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.5% or, under certain circumstances, 2.5% plus the Base Rate or as mutually agreed. The Base Rate is defined as the highest of (i) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%, (ii) the rate of interest publicly announced by Bank of America from time to time as its prime rate, (iii) LIBOR plus 1.0% and (iv) zero. Under the PF Facility, we also have the option to borrow at a fixed rate of interest until the expiration of the credit facility in July 2019. The fixed rate is determined by agreement with the Administrative Agent and is based on the prevailing US SWAP rate of an equivalent term to the average-life of the fixed rate portion of the borrowing plus an agreed upon margin. As of June 30, 2017, the weighted average interest rate on the PF Loan Agreement was 2.9% per annum.

For further information about our objectives and strategies, please see Business Investment Strategy, included in our 2016 10-K, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

S-7

# PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We have entered into separate Sales Agreements with FBR Capital Markets & Co. and Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated, as our sales agents, under which we may offer and sell shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$150,000,000 from time to time. The sales, if any, of shares of our common stock made under each of the Sales Agreements may be made in sales deemed to be at-the-market offerings as defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act, including by sales made directly on or through the NYSE or otherwise, in negotiated transactions, which may include block trades, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale or at negotiated prices, or as otherwise agreed with the applicable sales agent.

We will designate the maximum amount of shares of our common stock to be sold through the sales agents on a daily basis or otherwise as we and the sales agents agree and the minimum price per share at which such shares may be sold. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreements, the sales agents will use their commercially reasonable efforts to sell on our behalf all of the designated shares. We may instruct the sales agents not to sell any shares if the sales cannot be effected at or above the price designated by us in any such instruction. We or the sales agents may suspend the offering of shares at any time and from time to time by notifying the other party. We cannot predict the number of shares that we may sell hereby or if any shares will be sold.

We will pay each sales agent a commission up to 2% of the gross sales price per share sold through it as our agent under the applicable Sales Agreement. We have agreed to pay or reimburse certain of the expenses of the sales agents.

The applicable sales agent will provide to us written confirmation following the close of trading on the NYSE each day in which shares are sold under the Sales Agreement. Each confirmation will include the number of shares sold on that day, the gross sales proceeds, the net proceeds to us (after deducting any expenses payable by us and any transaction fees, transfer taxes or similar taxes or fees imposed by any governmental entity or self-regulatory organization in respect of such sales) and the compensation payable by us to the sales agents. We will report in a prospectus supplement and/or our filings under the Exchange Act, at least quarterly the number of shares sold by or through the sales agents under the Sales Agreements, the net proceeds to us and the aggregate compensation of the sales agents in connection with the sales of the shares.

Settlement for sales of shares will occur, unless the parties agree otherwise, (i) prior to September 5, 2017, on the third business day that is also a trading day following the date on which any sales were made and (ii) on and after September 5, 2017, on the second business day that is also a trading day following the date on which such sales were made, in each case in return for payment of the net proceeds to us. There is no arrangement for funds to be received in an escrow, trust or similar arrangement.

Under the terms of each of the Sales Agreements, we also may sell shares of our common stock to the sales agents, as principals for their own accounts, at a price per share agreed upon at the time of sale. If we sell shares to any of the sales agents, as principal, we will enter into a separate terms agreement with such sales agent or agents and we will describe the agreement in a separate prospectus supplement or pricing supplement.

The offering of shares pursuant to the Sales Agreements will terminate upon the earlier of (1) the sale of all shares subject to the Sales Agreements or (2) the termination of each Sales Agreement by us or by each of the sales agents.

In connection with the sale of shares of our common stock on our behalf, the sales agents may be deemed to be underwriters—within the meaning of the Securities Act, and the compensation paid to the sales agents may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts. We have agreed to provide indemnification and contribution to the sales agents against certain liabilities, including civil liabilities under the Securities Act.

We estimate that the total expenses of this offering payable by us, excluding commissions payable to the sales agents under the Sales Agreements, will be approximately \$375,000.

### **Conflicts of Interest**

The sales agents and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include sales and trading, commercial and investment banking, advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, market making, brokerage and other financial and non-financial activities and services. Certain of the sales agents and their respective affiliates have provided, and may in the future provide, a variety of these services to us and to persons and entities with relationships with us, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the sales agents and their respective affiliates, officers, directors and employees may purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade securities, derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps and other financial instruments for their own account and for the accounts of their customers, and such investment and trading activities may involve or relate to our assets, securities and/or instruments (directly, as collateral securing other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and entities with relationships with us. The sales agents and their respective affiliates may also communicate independent investment recommendations, market color or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such assets, securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they should acquire, long and/or short positions in such assets, securities and instruments.

S-9

# **LEGAL MATTERS**

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for us by Clifford Chance US LLP. In addition, the description of U.S. federal income tax consequences contained in the section of the accompanying prospectus entitled U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations is based on the opinion of Clifford Chance US LLP. Certain legal matters relating to this offering will be passed upon for the sales agents by Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer US LLP.

S-10

### **EXPERTS**

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. Our financial statements are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent auditor, has audited the consolidated financial statements, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, of Buckeye Wind Energy Class B Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. Such financial statements have been incorporated by reference in reliance upon the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

S-11

# WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION AND INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC. In addition, we file annual, quarterly, current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy the registration statement and any other documents filed by us at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the Public Reference Room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public at the SEC s Internet site at <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>. Our reference to the SEC s Internet site is intended to be an inactive textual reference only.

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus do not contain all of the information included in the registration statement. If a reference is made in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus to any of our contracts or other documents filed or incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the registration statement, the reference may not be complete and you should refer to the filed copy of the contract or document.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference into this prospectus supplement the information we file with the SEC, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. Information incorporated by reference is part of this prospectus supplement. Later information filed with the SEC will update and supersede this information.

#### **Document**

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35877) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35877) Annual Report on Form 10-K/A (File No. 001-35877) Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-35877)

### **Document**

Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35877) Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35877) Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35877) Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35877)

### **Document**

Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (only with respect to information contained in such Definitive Proxy Statement that is incorporated by reference into Part III of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016) (File No. 001-35877)

### **Document**

Registration Statement on Form 8-A (containing the description of shares of our common stock) (File No. 001-35877)

### Period

Quarter ended June 30, 2017 Quarter ended March 31, 2017 Year ended December 31, 2016 Year ended December 31, 2016

### **Date of Filing of Report**

June 5, 2017 March 21, 2017 March 10, 2017 March 6, 2017

### Date

April 10, 2017

# Date

April 15, 2013

All documents that we file (but not those that we furnish) pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act on or after the date of this prospectus supplement and until we have sold all of the securities to which this prospectus supplement relates or the offering of any of the securities covered under this prospectus supplement is otherwise terminated shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

All of the documents that are incorporated by reference are available at the website maintained by the SEC at <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>. In addition, if you request, either orally or in writing, we will provide you with a copy of any or

all documents that are incorporated by reference. Such documents will be provided to you free of charge, but will not contain any exhibits, unless those exhibits are incorporated by reference into the document. Requests should be addressed to us at 1906 Towne Centre Blvd, Suite 370, Annapolis, Maryland 21401, Attention: Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc., Investor Relations, or contact our offices at (410) 571-9860.

S-12

# **PROSPECTUS**

We may offer

on terms to be

debt securities;

# HANNON ARMSTRONG SUSTAINABLE INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL, INC.

Common Stock,

| Preferred Stock,  |
|---|
| Depositary Shares,  |
| Debt Securities   |
| Warrants  |
| and   |
| Rights  |
|   |
| offer from time to time, in one or more series or classes, separately or together, and in amounts, at prices and to be set forth in one or more supplements to this prospectus, the following securities: |
| shares of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share;   |
| shares of our preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share;  |
|   |

depositary shares representing entitlement to all rights and preferences of fractions of shares of our preferred

warrants to purchase our common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares or debt securities; or

rights to purchase our common stock or preferred stock.

stock of a specified class or series and represented by depositary receipts;

We refer to the common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, debt securities, warrants and rights, collectively, as the securities in this prospectus.

This prospectus describes some of the general terms that may apply to these securities and the general manner in which they may be offered. The specific terms of any securities to be offered, and the specific manner in which they may be offered, will be described in a supplement to this prospectus.

The applicable prospectus supplement will also contain information, where applicable, about certain U.S. federal income tax consequences relating to, and any listing on a securities exchange of, the securities covered by such prospectus supplement. It is important that you read both this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement before you invest.

We may offer the securities directly, through agents, or to or through underwriters. The prospectus supplement will describe the terms of the plan of distribution and set forth the names of any underwriters involved in the sale of the securities. See Plan of Distribution beginning on page 9 for more information on this topic. No securities may be sold without delivery of this prospectus and a prospectus supplement describing the method and terms of the offering of those securities.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, or the NYSE, under the symbol HASI. On July 31, 2017, the closing sale price of our common stock on the NYSE was \$23.25 per share.

Investing in these securities involves risks. You should carefully read the risk factors described in our Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, filings, including those described under Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as supplemented by the Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2016 and in our subsequently filed periodic reports incorporated by reference herein, before investing in our securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is August 4, 2017.

# **CONTENTS**

|   | Page |
|---|------|
| ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS   | 1    |
| SUMMARY INFORMATION   | 2    |
| RISK FACTORS  | 3    |
| FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  | 4    |
| RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES                                      | 6    |
| <u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>  | 7    |
| SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS   | 8    |
| PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION  | 9    |
| DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES   | 11   |
| DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK   | 16   |
| DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK  | 18   |
| DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES  | 20   |
| DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES  | 22   |
| DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS   | 25   |
| DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS   | 27   |
| CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MARYLAND GENERAL CORPORATION LAW AND OUR      |      |
| CHARTER AND BYLAWS  | 28   |
| HANNON ARMSTRONG SUSTAINABLE INFRASTRUCTURE, L.P. PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT | 34   |
| U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS                                  | 37   |
| BOOK-ENTRY SECURITIES   | 66   |
| LEGAL MATTERS   | 68   |
| <u>EXPERTS</u>  | 69   |
| WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION                                     | 70   |

- i -

# **ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS**

This prospectus is part of a shelf registration statement. Under this shelf registration statement, we may sell any combination of common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, debt securities, warrants and rights. You should rely only on the information provided or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of these securities is not permitted. You should not assume that the information appearing in this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus or the documents incorporated by reference herein or therein is accurate as of any date other than their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates. You should read carefully the entirety of this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement and any free writing prospectus, as well as the documents incorporated by reference herein or therein, before making an investment decision.

In this prospectus, unless otherwise specified or the context requires otherwise, we use the terms company, we, us and our to refer to Hannon Armstrong Sustainable Infrastructure Capital, Inc., together with its subsidiaries.

- 1 -

# **SUMMARY INFORMATION**

We are an internally managed real estate investment trust, or REIT, that makes debt and equity investments in sustainable infrastructure, including energy efficiency and renewable energy, that provide cleaner energy sources, positively impact the environment or make more efficient use of natural resources.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 2013.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1906 Towne Centre Blvd, Suite 370, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. Our telephone number is (410) 571-9860. Our website is *www.hannonarmstrong.com*. The information on our website is not intended to form a part of or be incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

# **RISK FACTORS**

Investing in any securities offered pursuant to this prospectus involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the risk factors described in the section captioned Risk Factors contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as supplemented by the Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2016, or collectively our 2016 10-K, and in subsequent periodic reports which we file with the SEC, as well as other information in this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement before purchasing any shares of our common stock. Any of these risks described could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, tax status or ability to make distributions to our stockholders. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially and adversely affect our business operations. If this were to happen, the price of our securities could decline significantly and you could lose a part or all of your investment. Each of the risks described could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, or ability to make distributions to our stockholders. In such case, you could lose all or a portion of your original investment. See Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 70 of this prospectus.

# FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in this document within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. For these statements, we claim the protections of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in such Sections. Forward-looking statements are subject to substantial risks and uncertainties, many of which are difficult to predict and are generally beyond our control. These forward-looking statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations, plans and objectives. When we use the words believe, expect, anticipate, estimate, plan, continue, intend, should, may or similar expressions, we intend to ide forward-looking statements. Statements regarding the following subjects, among others, may be forward-looking:

our expected returns and performance of our investments;

the state of government legislation, regulation and policies that support or enhance the economic feasibility of sustainable infrastructure projects, including energy efficiency and renewable energy projects and the general market demands for such projects;

market trends in our industry, energy markets, commodity prices, interest rates, the debt and lending markets or the general economy;

our business and investment strategy;

availability of opportunities to invest in sustainable infrastructure projects, including energy efficiency and renewable energy projects and our ability to complete potential new opportunities in our pipeline;

our relationships with originators, investors, market intermediaries and professional advisers;

competition from other providers of capital;

our or any other companies projected operating results;

actions and initiatives of the federal, state and local governments and changes to federal, state and local government policies, regulations, tax laws and rates and the execution and impact of these actions, initiatives and policies;

the state of the U.S. economy generally or in specific geographic regions, states or municipalities; economic trends and economic recoveries;

our ability to obtain and maintain financing arrangements on favorable terms, including securitizations;

general volatility of the securities markets in which we participate;

changes in the value of our assets, our portfolio of assets and our investment and underwriting process;

rates of default or decreased recovery rates on our assets;

interest rate and maturity mismatches between our assets and any borrowings used to fund such assets;

changes in interest rates and the market value of our assets and target assets;

changes in commodity prices;